
 

May 22, 2024 

1  

MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Special Session for the 
FY25 Recommended Budget Overview in Conference Room at Valerie C. Woodard Conference 
Center, 3205 Freedom Drive, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:30 p.m. on Wednesday, May 22, 
2024. 

 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 

Present: Chair George Dunlap, Vice-Chair Mark Jerrell, and 
Commissioners Leigh Altman, Patricia “Pat” Cotham, 
Arthur Griffin, Elaine Powell, Laura J Meier, Rodriguez-
McDowell 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

Absent: Commissioner Vilma D. Leake 
 
 

BUDGET PUBLIC POLICY  
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Dunlap, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 

 
24-0325 FY2024 THIRD QUARTER (Q3) BOARD BUDGET PRIORITIES UPDATE 
 

County Manager Dena Diorio said the meeting was to make sure that everyone had a full 
understanding of what was in the budget. 
 
Background: Staff provided the Board with the third quarter update on the status of the approved 
FY2024 budget items associated with each of the Board's FY2024 Budget Priorities.  
 
BOCC FY2024 Budget Priorities:  
 
- Early Childhood Development 
- Educational Attainment 
- Environmental Stewardship 
- Health Access 
- Housing Insecurity 
- Workforce Development  
- Racial Disparities (cross-cutting all priorities)  
 
 Adrian Cox, Mecklenburg County Budget Director gave the presentation. 



 

May 22, 2024 

2  

 
 
 
 

 



 

May 22, 2024 

3  

 
 

 



 

May 22, 2024 

4  

 
 

 



 

May 22, 2024 

5  



 

May 22, 2024 

6  

 
 

 



 

May 22, 2024 

7  

 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

8  

 
 

 



 

May 22, 2024 

9  

 

 
 
Comments  
 
Commissioner Powell said the results of the Metrolina Association for the Blind were powerful, 
and it was money well spent.  

 
24-0326 BUDGET OVERVIEW: COUNTY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDED BUDGET FY2024-

2025 
 

The Board Receive a detailed overview of the County Manager's Recommended Budget for FY 
2024-2025 
 
Background: The Board received a detailed overview of the County Manager's Recommended 
FY2024-2025 Budget in preparation for the straw voting session scheduled for May 30, 2024. 
 
Adrian Cox gave the presentation. 



 

May 22, 2024 

10  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

11  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

12  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

13  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

14  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

15  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

16  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

17  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

18  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

19  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

20  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

21  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

22  

 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

23  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

24  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

25  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

26  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

27  

 
 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

28  



 

May 22, 2024 

29  

 
 



 

May 22, 2024 

30  

 

 
 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked how the register of deeds related to sales tax and if it 
slowed as well. Mr. Cox said the sales tax slowed but the Register of Deeds revenue did decline. 
County Manager Diorio said the register of deeds was tied closely to the real estate market. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked why the Medicaid administration indirect cost 
reimbursement were decreasing. Mr. Cox said it was only a portion of what was being received, 
and it went down based on the state and the federal government reviewing the interpretation of 
the guidance.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked referencing Slide 10 if in FY25 if the 38% for CMS 
Operating Allocation included the fund balance portion. Mr. Cox said there was $4M in the 
operating for one-time bonuses but not the $10M for the capital. 
 
Commissioner Meier asked if the $5M loss in the Register of deeds was a projected amount or 
what was already seen. Mr. Cox said it was projected, but declines were already seen.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked if the $4 million for student devices in the CMS budget was from the 
fund balance. Mr. Cox said it was not, it was a one-time bonus, and it did not come from the fund 
balance.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked clarifying questions for sides regarding on the early childhood 
education budget, funding for the arts, and Smart Start which was answered by County Manager 
Diorio and Mr. Cox.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if the 50-cent tax increase would cover the sheriff’s revenue, deed 
activity, and Medicaid administration costs. Mr. Cox said the increase was to cover the three 
revenues of which $12.3M was the Sheriff’s Office.    
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if the $995,000 for the United Way program was in addition to the 
$1 million provided the prior year and be about $2M going forward. Mr. Cox said it was not in 
addition, and it was already in the budget.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked about the funding for workforce development and the funding for 
the Unified Workforce Development childcare subsidy.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said regarding Educational Attainment in the CMS budget that if they were 
100% successful, Black children would still be behind and going backwards in college and career 
readiness.  
 
County Manager Diorio said the individuals in the Unified Workforce Development program did 
not qualify for state subsidies.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if that amount could be raised. County Manager Diorio said if the 
Board could find the money, the amount could be raised.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked about advocating responsibility for the arts.  
 
County Manager Diorio said the Arts and Science Council was given over $4 million per year with 
zero appointments on the Board.  She said there would be seven appointments to the Board.   



 

May 22, 2024 

31  

 
Commissioner Powell asked what the former rate for onsite medical was and what the current 
rate was. Mr. Cox said the total in the current budget was $3.6M which was not necessarily a rate; 
it was paying the bills. County Manager Diorio said the new provider would cost more, and it had 
to be fully funded.  
 
Commissioner Powell asked for more information on how the $10M for land acquisition increased 
to $11.7M.  David Boyd, Chief Financial Officer, it was slightly more based on the value of $10M 
in the future. 
 
Commissioner Altman asked Mr. Boyd to speak about the sales tax revenues and trends in the 
nation. Mr. Boyd said forecasting the sales tax revenue had been very challenging, and they had 
been relatively conservative in the budget. He said it appeared there were more historical trends 
in sales tax growth.  
 
Commissioner Cotham asked how much money they received from the State for the lottery and 
said it seemed to decrease over the years. Mr. Cox said they received $9.9 million regularly.   
 
Commissioner Cotham asked how much money was left in the lapsed salaries. Mr. Cox said there 
were no longer lapsed salaries in the budget.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked about the unassigned funds in the general fund. Mr. Boyd said $149.5 
million was projected above the policy minimum, and $104 million of it was appropriated.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked what the recommended fund balance amount was. Mr. Boyd said it 
was $109 million.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked what was left in the fund balance above the threshold. Mr. Boyd said 
it was approximately $45 million.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked what their threshold number was. Mr. Boyd said 28% was prescribed 
in the policy, 35% is what the peer counties in the state had and was roughly the amount that 
most AAA large entities in the country had. 
 
Chair Dunlap said it appeared that all their focus was on four-year-olds, and he asked what the 
plan was to address the 0–5-year age range. County Manager Diorio said a staff person was hired 
to implement the prenatal to three-year-old strategic plan, there was money to hire a contractor, 
and a dashboard would be built to address how to track progress. She said there was nothing new 
to fund in FY25 because they were still working on the activities funded in FY24. 
 
Chair Dunlap asked how much was available to spend for equity investments. County Manager 
Diorio said she would follow up with the information.  
 
County Manager Diorio said they were waiting for an opinion from the Attorney General about 
whether for not the child development account are permissible under North Carolina law. 
 
Chair Dunlap discussed the passing of the budget and the half cent tax increase. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked for a listing of African American creatives that were included in their 
present process for the arts to be listed so that he could have a baseline when moving forward. 
County Manager Diorio said she would ask the ASC to provide the information.   
 
Commissioner Griffin asked about having an initiative with the Bank of America, private 
developers, and the County where home ownership was a potential outcome. County Manager 
Diorio said she would make a note of it. 



 

May 22, 2024 

32  

 
Commissioner Meier said she supported the educational investment.  
 
Commissioner Altman asked if the homeless program was reflected on one of their slides. Mr. 
Cox said it was part of the 2024 update but was not part of the recommended budget.  
 
Commissioner Altman asked how much they would carry forward. Mr. Cox said all but about $2 
million.  
 
Commissioner Altman said she felt the homeless program was important and was hoping it would 
grow. Deputy County Manager Anthony Trotman said they initially allocated $10 million, and the 
past year was $2 million, and the year prior was $1.56 million so they still had plenty of funds for 
the homeless program.  He said the City reduced its allocation and planned to only go for another 
year in partnership with the County.  
 
County manager Diorio said they had to make sure they tied it to something in statute to allow 
them to continue the program.  
 
County Attorney Tyrone Wade agreed and said it had to be tied in with some statutory authority.  
 
Chair Dunlap asked if the floor could be raised so more people could get into the homelessness 
program. Attorney Wade said the allocation could be raised and long as they met the criteria, and 
it didn’t violate some other statutory provision under the circuit breaker.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked what was left of the general fund balance. Mr. Boyd 
said it was at about 31%.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked where the fund balance would accrue in the future. 
County Manager Diorio said it would come from underspending in respective departments.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if they could take the half cent increase from fund 
balance this year and move it into next year and be able to delay the $14M. County Manager 
Diorio sand they would take a look at that and have a conversation at straw votes. 
 
Commissioner Powell asked if there was a breakdown of the burden that was added by the state 
not funding the courts and teacher supplements. Mr. Boyd said it was $451 million.  
 
Commissioner Powell asked for a report of the investment for the towns. County Manager Diorio 
said the ASC was working on pulling that together for her.  
 
Commissioner Powell asked why the stormwater fees were included in the budget. Mr. Cox said 
the funds had to be allocated to be spent.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell stated he thought it was appropriate to look at other alternatives for the 
tax increases.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell discussed the homelessness program and said one opportunity would be to 
change the allocation amount. County Manager Diorio said they could look at that as they had 
more flexibility to change the allocation amount versus the income thresholds. 
 
Commissioner Griffin said he thought transportation for seniors was something that interested 
him and said he hoped funds could be found for it. County Manager Diorio said money was one 
issue, but the larger issue was capacity.  
 
Commissioner Powell asked to look at additional funding needed for crisis intervention training 



 

May 22, 2024 

33  

and trauma-informed care for law enforcement and first responders. She mentioned that 
Commissioner Leake felt some teachers would benefit from that also.  She suggested partnering 
with Pineville as a first step.  
 
Chair Dunlap said everyone needed to consider what would happen to the fund balance if the 
half-cent was eliminated.  
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked questions about the Three Sisters Market that were answered by 
County Manager Diorio.  He asked if there were any other partners.  County Manager Diorio said 
there were a significant number of ARPA grants to organizations in the community and was 
waiting to see when those funds expired.  She said they were doing a gap analysis with the Food 
Policy Council to make them more effective and understand how they could help advance food 
insecurity initiatives across the County. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said it was outstanding that $25.5 million was repurposed 
and realigned to avoid having to increase taxes even more.  She said since 2015, by adding it all 
up they were saving 6.9 cents on the tax rate. 
 
Commissioner Powell said nobody wanted to increase taxes, but they needed to consider the 
population served. She said even with the increase, it would not meet all their needs.  
 

24-0328 COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

 
There were no Commissioner Reports given. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Dunlap declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:15 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

 

Kristine M. Smith, Clerk to the Board George Dunlap, Chair 


